FILED Jan 24, 2014 Court of Appeals Division III State of Washington No. 31611-4-III

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

DIVISION THREE

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

v.

ADRIAN SAMALIA,

Appellant.

ON APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON FOR YAKIMA COUNTY

The Honorable Doug Federspiel

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF

KRISTINA M. NICHOLS Nichols Law Firm, PLLC Attorney for Appellant P.O. Box 19203 Spokane, WA 99219 (509) 731-3279 Wa.Appeals@gmail.com

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Washington Supreme Court

<i>State v. Baeza</i> , 100 Wn.2d 487, 670 P.2d 646 (1983)10, 12
State v. Bennett, 161 Wn.2d 303, 165 P.3d 1241 (2007)20
<i>State v. Bone-Club</i> , 128 Wn.2d 254, 906 P.2d 325 (1995)42-44
<i>State v. Brightman</i> , 155 Wn.2d 506, 122 P.3d 150 (2005)44
<i>State v. Brown</i> , 147 Wn.2d 330, 58 P.3d 889 (2002)21
<i>State v. Calliguri</i> , 99 Wn.2d 501, 664 P.2d 466 (1983)25, 28
<i>State v. Clausing</i> , 147 Wn.2d 620, 56 P.3d 550 (2002)20
<i>State v. Coe</i> , 175 Wn.2d 482, 286 P.3d 29 (2012)32
<i>State v. Crane</i> , 116 Wn.2d 315, 804 P.2d 10 (1991)31
<i>State v. Cronin</i> , 142 Wn.2d 568, 14 P.3d 752 (2000)16
<i>State v. Darden</i> , 145 Wn.2d 612, 41 P.3d 1189 (2002)30
State v. Davenport, 100 Wn.2d 757, 675 P.2d 1213 (1984)38
State v. Davis, 101 Wn.2d 654, 682 P.2d 883 (1984)16
State v. Easterling, 157 Wn.2d 167, 137 P.3d 825 (2006)42, 45
<i>State v. Fry</i> , 168 Wn.2d 1, 228 P.3d 1 (2010)20
In re Glassman, 175 Wn.2d 696, 708, 286 P.3d 673 (2012)
State v. Green, 94 Wn.2d 216, 616 P.2d 628 (1980)11
State v. Greiff, 141 Wn.2d 910, 10 P.3d 390 (2000)32, 36, 48
<i>State v. Gregory</i> , 158 Wn.2d 759, 147 P.3d 1201 (2006)39

<i>State v. Handburgh</i> , 119 Wn.2d 284, 830 P.2d 641 (1992)13, 15
<i>State v. Hopson</i> , 113 Wn.2d 273, 778 P.2d 1014 (1989)31, 32
<i>State v. Huson</i> , 73 Wn.2d 660, 440 P.2d 192 (1968)38
State v. Johnson, 155 Wn.2d 609, 121 P.3d 91 (2005)12-15, 19, 21, 22
<i>State v. Jones</i> , 168 Wn.2d 713, 230 P.3d 576 (2010)30
<i>State v. King</i> , 167 Wn.2d 324, 219 P.3d 642 (2009)33
<i>State v. Kirkman</i> , 159 Wn.2d 918, 155 P.3d 125 (2007)34
<i>State v. Kyllo</i> , 166 Wn.2d 856, 215 P.3d 177 (2009)21
State v. LeFaber, 128 Wn.2d 896, 913 P.2d 369 (1996)21
<i>State v. Lord</i> , 161 Wn.2d 276, 165 P.3d 1251 (2007)31
State v. Marsh, 126 Wash. 142, 217 P. 705 (1923)44
<i>State v. Monday</i> , 171 Wn.2d 667, 257 P.3d 551 (2001)38
State v. Myers, 133 Wn.2d 26, 941 P.2d 1102 (1997)11
In re Pers. Rest. of Orange, 152 Wn.2d 795, 100 P.3d 291 (2004)42-44
State v. Partin, 88 Wn.2d 899, 567 P.2d 1136 (1977)11
<i>State v. Paumier</i> , 176 Wn.2d 29, 288 P.3d 1126 (2012)43
<i>State v. Riley</i> , 137 Wn.2d 904, 976 P.2d 624 (1999)20
State v. Roberts, 142 Wn.2d 471, 14 P.3d 713 (2000)16, 26
<i>State v. Russell</i> , 125 Wn.2d 24, 882 P.2d 747 (1994)31
State v. Salinas, 119 Wn.2d 192, 829 P.2d 1068 (1992)11
<i>State v. Welchel</i> , 115 Wn.2d 708, 801 P.2d 948 (1990)33

<i>State v. Wise</i> , 176 Wn.2d 1, 288 P.3d 1113 (2012)43
Washington Courts of Appeals State v. Barr, 123 Wn. App. 373, 98 P.3d 518 (2004)34, 37
State v. Castro, 32 Wn. App. 559, 648 P.2d 485 (1982)15, 19, 26
State v. Collins, 2 Wn. App. 757, 470 P.2d 227, 228 (1970)11
State v. Corbett, 158 Wn. App. 576, 242 P.3d 52 (2010)38
State v. Ginn, 128 Wn. App. 872, 117 P.3d 1155 (2005)20, 21
State v. Grendahl, 110 Wn. App. 905, 43 P.3d 76 (2002)17, 26-28
State v. Horton, 116 Wn. App. 909, 68 P.3d 1145 (2003)
<i>State v. Jones</i> , 117 Wn. App. 89, 68 P.3d 1153 (2003)33
<i>State v. King</i> , 113 Wn. App. 243, 54 P.3d 1218 (2002)26
State v. Leyerle, 158 Wn. App. 474, 242 P.3d 921 (2010)43, 44, 45
<i>State v. Lopez</i> , 95 Wn. App. 842, 980 P.2d 224 (1999)48
State v. Love, 176 Wn. App. 911, 309 P.3d 1209 (Div. 3, 9/24/2013) 43
State v. Lubers, 81 Wn. App. 614, 915 P.2d 1157 (1996)29
State v. Manchester, 57 Wn. App. 765, 790 P.2d 217 (1990)15
<i>State v. Medina</i> , 112 Wn. App. 40, 48 P.3d 1005 (2002)30
State v. Moore, 7 Wn. App. 1, 499 P.2d 16 (1972)10
<i>State v. Notaro</i> , 161 Wn. App. 654, 255 P.3d 775 (2011)34
<i>State v. Olmedo</i> , 112 Wn. App. 525, 49 P.3d 960 (2002)33
<i>State v. Otis</i> , 151 Wn. App. 572, 213 P.3d 613 (2009)20
State v. Taplin, 9 Wn. App. 545, 513 P.2d 549 (1973)11

<i>State v. Theroff</i> , 25 Wn. App. 590, 608 P.2d 1254, aff'd, 95 Wn.2d 385 (1980)11
State v. Trout, 125 Wn. App. 403, 105 P.3d 69 (2005)26, 27
<i>State v. Truong</i> , 168 Wn. App. 529, 277 P.3d 74 <i>review denied</i> , 175 Wn.2d 1020 (2012)14, 15, 18, 19
<i>State v. Walker</i> , 164 Wn. App. 724, 265 P.3d 191 (2011)39
<i>State v. We</i> , 138 Wn. App. 716, 158 P.3d 1238 (2007), <i>review denied</i> , 163 Wn.2d 1008 (2008)33
<i>In re Wilson</i> , 169 Wn. App. 379, 279 P.3d 990 (2012)16
Washington Statutes, Constitution and Court Rules
RCW 9A.08.02015, 16
RCW 9A.56.19012, 22
RCW 9A.56.20012
RCW 9A.08.010
Wash. Const., Art. 1, §310, 38

w asii. Collst., Alt. 1, 35
Wash. Const. art 1, § 1042
Wash. Const. Art. 1 §22
5D WAPRAC ER 704(6), (9) and (11)
WPIC 10.01
WPIC 37.02
WPIC 37.50

Federal Authorities

<i>Bruton v. United States</i> , 391 U.S. 123, 88 S.Ct. 1620 (1968)32
Davis v. Alaska, 415 U.S. 308, 94 S.Ct. 1105, 39 L.Ed.2d 347 (1974)29
Haas v. Warden, SCI Somerset, 760 F.Supp.2d 484 (E.D.Pa., 2010)47
In re Winship, 397 U.S. 358, 90 S.Ct. 1068, 25 L.Ed.2d 368 (1970)10
<i>Pennsylvania v. Ritchie</i> , 480 U.S. 39, 107 S.Ct. 989, 94 Led.2d 40 (1987)
<i>Press-Enter. Co. v. Superior Court of California</i> , 464 U.S. 501, 104 S.Ct. 819 (1984)
<i>Presley v. Georgia</i> , 558 U.S. 209, 130 S.Ct. 721, 175 L.Ed.2d 675 (2010)43
United States v. Dunn, 307 F.3d 883 (5 th Cir. 1962)35
United States v. Mayans, 17 F.3d 1174 (9 th Cir. 1994)29
Waller v. Georgia, 467 U.S. 39, 104 S.Ct. 2210, 81 L.Ed.2d 31 (1984)42
U.S. Const. amend. I42
U.S. Const. amend VI
U.S. Const. amend. XIV10, 38

A. <u>SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT</u>

Adrian Samalia was convicted of first-degree robbery after he and another man, Travis Cliett, took one package each from an unattended UPS truck. When the UPS driver and a nearby store employee saw them, both men took off running while the driver and employee gave chase. Mr. Samalia dropped his package as he ran down the opposite side of the UPS truck from Mr. Cliett. Mr. Samalia then displayed a firearm while trying to escape, and the driver and employee stopped chasing. Mr. Samalia and Mr. Cliett got into a waiting SUV and were later arrested.

Mr. Samalia's first-degree robbery conviction should be reversed. There was not sufficient evidence that Mr. Samalia displayed the weapon in an attempt to retain stolen property. He displayed the weapon to effectuate his escape after abandoning the property, which does not constitute robbery as a matter of law. Further, there was insufficient evidence that Mr. Samalia knew Mr. Cliett retained the package he had taken or that Mr. Samalia displayed a firearm to help Mr. Cliett retain that package so as to make Mr. Samalia guilty as an accomplice.

Next, Mr. Samalia is entitled to a new trial since the instructions were inadequate to allow him to argue his theory of the case, that any firearm display was merely to effectuate his escape rather than robbery. Moreover, the instructions as given confused and misled the jury. Indeed,

pg. 1

the jury was confused and still questioned the court after deliberating some time on the difference between robbery and theft.

The court further erred by refusing to allow Mr. Samalia to impeach a key witness for the State, the driver of the SUV, so as to show the extent of the bias this witness had and her motivation for testifying in favor of the State in exchange for significantly less incarceration time.

And the court erred by denying defendant's post-verdict motion for a mistrial based on the highly prejudicial testimony of one officer that officers don't lie and based on the prosecutor's essentially visual shout on a PowerPoint slide that defendant was "GUILTY."

Finally, the defendant was denied his right to an open and public trial where the public was notified that the courthouse was closed even though the security guards unlocked courthouse doors after-hours on certain days at the direction of the trial judge.

Mr. Samalia's conviction should be reversed and judgment entered for third-degree theft or, at a minimum, the matter remanded for a new trial. The multiple errors in this case were both individually and cumulatively so prejudicial that justice cannot be satisfied by anything short of a new trial.

B. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

1. The court erred by convicting Mr. Samalia of first-degree robbery.

2. The court erred by denying Mr. Samalia's motion to dismiss for insufficient evidence.

3. The court erred by refusing to submit defendant's proposed instructions to the jury regarding use of force and intent/accomplice liability.

4. The court erred by improperly limiting the defendant's confrontation and impeachment of a key witness for the State, Ms. Melton.

5. The court erred by refusing to admit Defendant's proposed exhibit 5 to impeach Ms. Melton.

6. The court erred by denying defendant's post-verdict motion for a new trial.

7. The court erred by failing to take reasonable measures to provide an open and public trial.

C. ISSUES PERTAINING TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

Issue 1: Whether the evidence was insufficient to establish firstdegree robbery where (a) the only evidence of use of force was in flight from the robbery rather than to retain possession of stolen property, and (b) there was no evidence that the defendant knew his charged accomplice retained a stolen package during their attempt to escape.

- a. The defendant abandoned the property he had taken and then displayed a firearm in his attempt to escape; these facts cannot sustain a first-degree robbery conviction.
- b. There was insufficient evidence that Mr. Samalia knew Mr. Cliett had retained property when Mr. Samalia displayed the weapon in his attempt to escape, so Mr. Samalia's conviction as an accomplice should be reversed.

Issue 2: Whether the court erred by providing the jury with misleading instructions and refusing to instruct on the defendant's legally supported theory of the case that (a) defendant's showing of force for

purposes of mere escape does not constitute robbery, and (b) defendant could only be convicted of robbery as an accomplice if he intended to commit robbery rather than mere theft.

- a. Without an instruction that force in mere escape does not constitute robbery, the defendant could not adequately argue his theory of the case and the jury was confused or misled on the proper law for conviction.
- b. The instructions as a whole misled or confused the jury on accomplice liability and intent, allowing the defendant to be improperly convicted even if the jury found that he or his accomplice only intended to commit theft.

Issue 3: Whether the court erred by denying defendant's right to confront and impeach witnesses Stacey Melton, a convicted accomplice in this matter, when he was prohibited from asking her what first-degree robbery sentence she expected to avoid in exchange for her testimony against the defendant.

Issue 4: Whether the court erred by denying defendant's motion for a mistrial (a) after flagrantly improper opinion testimony by an officer that "I know these officers aren't lying" and (b) based on prosecutorial misconduct during closing argument including a PowerPoint that essentially shouted that defendant was "GUILTY."

- a. The officer's flagrant and non-responsive comment that he knew the other officers weren't lying was so prejudicial that it could not be cured by an instruction and should have resulted in a mistrial.
- b. The prosecutor's closing PowerPoint slides that stated the defendant was "GUILTY" were so prejudicial that they should have resulted in a mistrial.

Issue 5: Whether the court failed to take reasonable measures to guarantee an open and public trial when it merely directed security guards to unlock the courthouse, while the signage and other publicly posted hours indicated that the courthouse was closed at 4:00 p.m.

Issue 6: Whether the cumulative error doctrine requires reversal and remand for a new trial in this case.

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On December 9, 2011, two males each took a package from the back of a UPS truck that was stopped to pick up deliveries at Graphic Label, Inc., in Yakima, Washington. (RP 259-61, 263, 289) Although their faces were not seen, the two unidentified males were seen removing the packages by the UPS truck driver, Vernon Place, and an employee for Graphic Label, Ty Walker. (RP 262, 277, 289) Mr. Place and Mr. Walker yelled at the two males and gave chase when they ran, with Mr. Walker chasing one male down the driver's side of the UPS truck and Mr. Place chasing the other down the passenger side of the truck. (RP 262, 289)

During this chase, the man on the passenger side dropped the package he was carrying and displayed a gun that may have been pointed in Mr. Walker's direction. (RP 263-64, 267-68, 281-83, 291, 293, 305-06, 311-12, 314) Mr. Place and Mr. Walker immediately stopped upon seeing the weapon, and the two unidentified males climbed into the passenger side of an SUV to drive away. (RP 266, 295, 310) Mr. Walker testified that the one with the weapon got in the rear passenger door. (RP 295-96, 310)

Mr. Walker contacted police and gave a description of the SUV (RP 295, 310), after which Officer Tarin Miller stopped a vehicle with a

pg. 5

similar license plate and description about 12 blocks from the Graphic Label (RP 382, 508-11). When the vehicle was stopped, a man left the car from the rear passenger side, ran and jumped a fence. (RP 511-12) Officer Tarin Miller gave chase, during which time she saw the man toss away a firearm. (RP 407, 421, 431, 512-13, 517) Officer Miller was unable to stop the man with her Taser and he jumped another fence. (RP 514) Other officers arrived to assist Officer Miller, and a K-9 scent tracking dog eventually dragged a man from beneath a tarp behind some nearby cabins after about 10 minutes of searching.¹ (RP 339, 343, 346, 348, 405-07, 513) Officer Miller identified the man as the same one she had been chasing since the traffic stop, the defendant in this case, Mr. Adrian Samalia. (RP 348, 513)

Meanwhile, the SUV that Officer Miller had stopped was no longer there after Mr. Samalia's arrest. (RP 519) It was later determined that the SUV was registered to a woman named Stacey Melton. (RP 326, 382) At trial, Ms. Melton testified that, on the day and general time in question, she had dropped off her boyfriend Travis Cliett and Mr. Samalia in the area of the Graphic Label. (RP 382, 384, 388) She further testified that they then rejoined her in the SUV, Mr. Cliett climbing into the front passenger seat with a large box and the defendant climbing into the rear

¹ Please note that the transcript incorrectly identifies the K-9 handling officer as "Officer Taylor" for the witness testifying even though Officer Bruce Rogers was providing this particular testimony. (RP 336, et seq.)

passenger side. (RP 385, 388-89) She admitted that she had been stopped by a police officer that day, but, at her boyfriend's direction, she drove away when the officer gave chase to Mr. Samalia. (RP 389-90) Ms. Melton then drove away and falsely reported the car stolen. (RP 391-93)

Ms. Melton testified that her testimony was being provided in exchange for a very serious charge against her being dropped and a significantly lower sentence. (RP 432-34, 437-38) However, the defendant was not permitted to admit Ms. Melton's plea into evidence or cross examine her on how much prison time she was actually avoiding in exchange for her testimony. (RP 393-98, 400-02, 441, 520)

In addition to the above testimony, other officers testified that they had participated in the case by conducting witness interviews (RP 270-71, 298, 471, 477), helping search for suspects and generally investigating the case. (RP 407, 463-68) For example, Officer Chris Taylor testified that he eventually executed a search warrant on the SUV and found Mr. Samalia's identification in the car. (RP 324-25) Officer Taylor also testified that he heard the initial dispatch and listened to Officer Tarin Miller's communications as she pursued the suspect from the SUV. (RP 321, 323) The officer was then cross examined as to whether he was just assuming or speculating that Mr. Samalia was the person chased by Officer Miller since he never actually saw those events unfold and since

pg. 7

Mr. Samalia's identification could have been in that SUV that he searched for six months. (RP 331-32) Officer Taylor responded as follows:

"Because another officer stopped that car. Saw Mr. Samalia run from it. He was detained shortly thereafter in a very immediate proximity to where the car was. <u>Based on my training experience I</u> <u>know these officers aren't lying</u>."

(RP 332-33) (emphasis added). Defense counsel immediately objected and moved to strike this experienced officer's prejudicial statement, which the court granted with instruction that the jury disregard the officer's response regarding lying or not lying. (RP 333-34) The defendant later moved for a mistrial due to the extreme prejudice from this comment, but the motion was denied. (RP 662)

Mr. Samalia's five-day trial on the charge of first-degree robbery with a firearm began on April 8, 2013. (CP 4-5) After much disagreement about how best to instruct the jury on the appropriate law (RP 486-87, 550, 555-75; CP 46, 50, 71, 87-89), the jury was finally instructed and closing arguments given (RP 578-90, 592-637; CP 73-97). During the State's closing, it argued that the defendant had either pulled a gun to stop Mr. Place and Mr. Walker from chasing him, or to retain possession of the stolen property that his accomplice had (RP 596), even though only the latter would support a robbery conviction under the law (CP 89). The State also displayed a PowerPoint slide that the defendant had run because of "Consciousness of GUILT" and concluded the

pg. 8

PowerPoint with the statement that the defendant was "GUILTY." (RP 603-04, 627; CP 165, 167) The court sustained the defendant's objection and directed the State to take down this last slide, though it denied the motion for mistrial based on the PowerPoint slide as well. (RP 604, 662)

The jury exhibited its confusion in deliberating on this case when it asked for clarification on the difference between robbery and the lesser included theft. (RP 649-50; CP 102) After being returned to its jury instructions, the jury announced a verdict against Mr. Samalia of guilt for first-degree robbery and a special verdict that, yes, he was armed with a firearm when committing the crime.² (RP 654; CP 102-104)

Mr. Samalia moved to set aside the verdict and receive a new trial, arguing that the instructions were faulty and that the prejudice from Officer Taylor's testimony and the improper PowerPoint during closing argument could not be cured with instructions to the jury. (RP 662) The court denied the defendant's motion. (CP 125-30) Mr. Samalia received a mid-standard-range sentence of 108 months. (RP 693; CP 131-38) This appeal timely followed. (CP 139) Additional facts may be referenced below as pertinent to that particular issue raised on appeal.

² In a bifurcated bench trial on a separate charge, the court acquitted Mr. Samalia of unlawful possession of a firearm, finding insufficient evidence of prior convictions. (CP 113)

E. <u>ARGUMENT</u>

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