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

This is an incorrect interpretation of the court’s ruling.  The one 

phrase this court should consider strongly is “seeming to acknowledge” 

because this adjective means; 

Meriam-Webster’s online dictionary - Full 
Definition of SEEMING 
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:  outwardly or superficially evident but not true 
or real <the seeming immortality of our heroes>  

Oxford Dictionaries 
Adjective 1 Appearing to be real or true, but not 
necessarily being so; apparent: 
 

It may outwardly or superficially appear to Appellant that the judge 

is saying that there may be a conviction as stated in his brief.  BUT that is 

not true or real when the court’s ruling is read with an unbiased eye and in 

context: 

SCOTT: Ok. We’ll take a look at them. Has the Court 
decided whether to give my intent instruction? Based 
on…  
JUDGE : You know I looked at that. It was in the 
context of a murder and I looked at the quote out of the 
paragraph in the case. And I’m inclined to just stick with 
the WPIC and not add that additional sentence.  
SCOTT: I understand Your Honor. I disagree with it, but 
I understand.  
JUDGE: No I understand.  
SCOTT: The WPICs are not approved by the Court. Or 
prepared by the Court. Instead they are prepared by a 
committee and submitted.  
JUDGE: Yeah.  
SCOTT: And the Courts often times say no that’s not 
what…  
JUDGE: Well and I’m not doing it just for that purpose. 
I took a look at it and I just think it could add to some 
confusion more than clarity. Notwithstanding that it is 
admittedly an accurate verbatim quote out of that case. 
I’m just not sure that it…  
SCOTT: It’s an accurate statement of the law. No one 
has ever argued otherwise. You know, I don’t what the 
Court’s hesitation, or the State’s hesitation on it is. I 
know that the State’s hesitation is just simply if it’s not 
WPIC, we object. But beyond that I don’t know of 
any….  
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JUDGE: Well, that wasn’t my hesitation.  
SCOTT: No, no, no. But that is the State’s hesitation. 
The State always says if it’s not WPIC, we object. And 
that’s that. But the Court’s much more thoughtful about 
it than that. And the concern that the Court has. I’m not 
sure how it is more confusing. It I think adds clarity that 
the intent has to be something that is more than just by 
accident. I think that the normal intent and in this case it 
becomes very important. Because when we are talking 
about the accomplis (sic –There are innumerable 
typographical errors throughout this transcript.  The 
word “accomplice” is, on most occasions, spelled 
“accomplis” throughout.) theory you can’t simply 
schlep this through. The person acts with intent or 
intentionally when acting with objective or purpose to 
accomplish a result. It constitutes a crime, as in WPIC. 
But in this case with the accomplis theory. And the very 
precise nature of that, it requires that the intent not be a 
result that happens to be a crime. But the crime has to be 
the intent. And that’s why the intent exists only if a 
known or expected result is also the actor’s objective or 
purpose. It’s not by accident. But if you don’t put that in 
there then it allows it by accident.  
JUDGE: And it would be…  
SCOTT: And it allows the State to argue that, “Well you 
know whether he knew or not. It doesn’t matter ladies 
and gentlemen. If the guy was taking a box and he 
shows a firearm. Tough.” That’s all it takes. That’s the 
result. That’s what it says. The purpose is to accomplish 
a result that constitutes a crime. You see my concern. 
JUDGE: Well and then I’ve got the additional concern 
that you want to be able to argue one of two things. That 
either Mr. Samalia didn’t know that the other individual 
was going to take an item and therefore could be 
responsible for accomplis liability. Or the alternate that 
the other gentleman didn’t know that Mr. Samalia had a 
firearm. Or allegedly had a firearm. 
SCOTT: That’s two of the myriad arguments available 
to us. Yes.  
JUDGE: Yeah. I understand. Well I think I’ve decided 
everything but for that one. 
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Caliguri is a 1983 case, it was cited in seventy-seven cases in this 

state. Few cited this “intent” section of the opinion and none for the reason 

posited by Samalia.   Three published cases State v. Bea, 162 Wn.App. 

570, 254 P.3d 948 (2011) and State v. Peterson, 54 Wn.App. 75, 772 P.2d 

513 (1989) and State v. Peterson, 54 Wn.App. 75, 772 P.2d 513 (1989) 

refer to the section of the opinion that Samalia claims is dispositive of the 

issue. This court in Bea states: 

“Intent" to commit a criminal act means more than merely " 
knowledge" that a consequence will result. Compare RCW 
9A.08.010(1)(a) (defining " intent" ) with RCW 
9A.08.010(1)(b) (defining " knowledge" ); State v. 
Caliguri, 99 Wash.2d 501, 505, 664 P.2d 466 (1983). 
“Intent" exists only if a known or expected result is also the 
actor's “objective or purpose." Caliguri, 99 Wash.2d at 506, 
664 P.2d 466 (citing RCW 9A.08.010(1)(a)). Where there 
is no direct evidence of the actor's intended objective or 
purpose, intent may be inferred from circumstantial 
evidence. Id. (citing State v. Shelton, 71 Wash.2d 838, 839, 
431 P.2d 201 (1967)). A jury may infer criminal intent 
from a defendant's conduct where it is plainly indicated as a 
matter of logical probability. State v. Myers, 133 Wash.2d 
26, 38, 941 P.2d 1102 (1997) (citing State v. Bright, 129 
Wash.2d 257, 270, 916 P.2d 922 (1996)). This includes 
inferring or permissively presuming that a defendant 
intends the natural and probable consequences of his or her 
acts. Caliguri, 99 Wash.2d at 506, 664 P.2d 466 (citing 
State v. Caldwell, 94 Wash.2d 614, 617-18, 618 P.2d 508 
(1980)). 
      While the trier of fact is permitted to draw an inference 
or presumption that a defendant intends the natural and 
probable consequences of his or her acts, however, the 
defendant is entitled to have the jury give equal 
consideration to the possibility that he did not act 
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intentionally, including any theory of nonintentional 
conduct that he might offer. 
 
Peterson, supra at 80-81, states: 

The evidence here establishes that Weiss committed 
the substantive crime of manufacturing a controlled 
substance with the intent to manufacture or deliver. RCW 
69.50.401(a); W. LaFave & A. Scott, Criminal Law § 28, at 
196 (1972) (if statute proscribes a certain act, e.g., 
receiving stolen property, without requiring the actor to do 
so with knowledge or reason to know, commission of the 
crime requires only intent to engage in the forbidden 
conduct); See also RCW 9A.08.010(1)(a) ("Intent. A 
person acts with intent ... when he acts with the objective or 
purpose to accomplish a result which constitutes a crime."); 
State v. Caliguri, 99 Wash.2d 501, 505-06, 664 P.2d 466 
(1983). The crime here did not require an intent to do more 
than the proscribed act. It required only manufacture or 
possession with intent to manufacture or deliver. Thus, 
although Weiss in effect had the permission of the police to 
manufacture the speed and arguably did so without a mens 
rea of criminal purpose, he nonetheless "committed the 
crime" for purposes of being a principal to support liability 
under the accomplice liability statute. 

 
Further, the accomplice instruction was given in this case, WPIC 

10.51 (CP 82) therefore the analysis in State v. Cronin, 142 Wn.2d 568, 

589, 14 P.3d 752 (2000) is applicable: 

…the Court of Appeals has repeatedly upheld accomplice 
liability where the accomplice had general knowledge his or 
her confederate would commit a crime; the accomplices 
need not share the mens rea of the crime and, in fact, need 
not have specific knowledge of all of the elements of the 
crime actually committed. See, e.g., State v. Johnston, 100 
Wn.App. 126, 996 P.2d 629 (2000); State v. Haack, 88 
Wn.App. 423, 958 P.2d 1001 (1997), review denied, 134 
Wn.2d 1016, 958 P.2d 314 (1998); State v. Ferreira, 69 
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Wn.App. 465, 850 P.2d 541 (1993); State v. Hinds, 85 
Wn.App. 474, 936 P.2d 1135 (1997); State v. Galisia, 63 
Wn.App. 833, 822 P.2d 303, review denied, 119 Wn.2d 
1003, 832 P.2d 487 (1992); State v. Peterson, 54 Wn.App. 
75, 772 P.2d 513, review denied, 113 Wn.2d 1007, 779 P.2d 
727 (1989); State v. Randle, 47 Wn.App. 232, 734 P.2d 51 
(1987), review denied, 110 Wash.2d 1008 (1988); State v. 
Bockman, 37 Wn.App. 474, 682 P.2d 925, review denied, 
102 Wn.2d 1002 (1984). 
 

RESPONE TO ISSUE THREE- Cross examination of Ms. Melton. 
 

Samalia was allowed to effectively cross examine this witness.  

The ruling by the trial court, with the agreement of the State, appears to be 

more to insure that defense counsel did not inject an error into the 

proceedings.   The only thing that trial counsel was not allowed to do was 

have Ms. Melton testify as to what the actual punishment was for the 

original count, Robbery 1, that she was charge with.        

Trial counsel acknowledged that this was not a proper line of 

questioning “in general” but continued to argue that he should be allowed 

to elicit from this witness what the punishment was.  The error here is that 

what counsel was attempting to elicit was information that would not be 

allowed before the jury against his client.  The method counsel attempted 

to use and, that Samalia continues to argue before this court, would have 

been as the court and the deputy prosecutor stated invited error.   RP 395, 

400. Invited error prohibits a party from "setting up error in the trial court 
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and then complaining of it on appeal." State v. Young, 63 Wn. App. 324, 

330, 818 P.2d 1375 (1991) 

State v. Garcia, 179 Wn.2d 828, 318 P.3d 266 (2014) addressed the 

issue of cross examination: 

An impermissible limitation on the scope of cross-

examination is a violation of a defendant's right to 

confrontation. See U.S. Const. amend. VI; State v. Darden, 

145 Wn.2d 612, 620-21, 41 P.3d 1189 (2002). The scope of 

cross-examination is within the discretion of the trial court 

and will not be disturbed unless there is a manifest abuse of 

discretion. Id. at 619. “A trial court abuses its discretion if 

its decision 'is manifestly unreasonable or based upon 

untenable grounds or reasons.'" State v. Lamb, 175 Wn.2d 

121, 127, 285 P.3d 27 (2012) (quoting State v. Powell, 126 

Wn.2d 244, 258, 893 P.2d 615 (1995)). Therefore, the court 

erred if there was no lawful justification for restricting the 

cross-examination. 

A trial court violates a defendant's right to confront witnesses if it 

impermissibly limits the scope of cross-examination.   State v. Garcia, 179 

Wn.2d 828, 844, 318 P.3d 266 (2014).   But "[t]he right to confrontation, 

and the associated right to cross-examine adverse witnesses, is limited by 

general considerations of relevance.”   State v. O'Connor, 155 Wn.2d 335, 

348-49, 119 P.3d 806 (2005) (emphasis omitted).    Evidence is relevant if 

it tends "to make the existence of any fact that is of consequence to the 

determination of the action more probable or less probable.”  ER 401  
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         This court reviews a trial court's rulings on relevancy for abuse of 

discretion. State v. Foxhoven, 161 Wn.2d. 168, 176, 163 P.3d 786 (2007).  

This court also reviews rulings on "[t]he scope of cross-examination" for 

abuse of discretion.  Garcia, supra, 179 Wn.2d at 844.   

The trial court properly limited the scope of cross-examination, the 

possible effect of the plea bargain on the testimony of this witness was 

relevant, the exact period of incarceration for the original crime was not.   

The State has included this section of the VRP in Appendix A.  

The defendant was allowed an amazing amount of leeway in asking 

questions of this witness.  Basically the only thing counsel was not 

allowed to ask or elicit from Ms. Melton was that this was a “class A 

Felony” and that the maximum punishment was “life imprisonment and/or 

$50,000.00 fine…with the possibility of parole.”  (RP 394-5, 396-7) The 

following section addresses the primary section of this examination.   It is 

absolutely clear that the actions of the trial court were not a violation of 

that courts discretion.  

SCOTT: You were charged in this case. Correct? 
MELTON: Yes. 
SCOTT: Very serious charge. Right? 
MELTON: Yes. 
SCOTT: And after talking to the officers and essentially lying to 
them repeatedly, you then came to an agreement with the State. 
Correct? 
MELTON: Yes. 
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SCOTT: And it’s your understanding that this very serious charge 
is going to ultimately be dismissed. Isn’t it? 
MELTON: I believe so. 
SCOTT: And you are, have been permitted to plead guilty to a 
much less, significantly less. Almost infinitesimal by comparison, 
criminal charge. Correct? 
… 
SCOTT: I’m going to talk about what your understanding is. Ok? 
Do you believe that your, that the State’s recommendation 
regarding sentence is somehow connected with your testimony 
here? 
MELTON: Um, yes. I guess so. 
RP 433 
SCOTT: Ok. So can you tell me what your understanding is 
regarding that? 
MELTON: Um. I’m not really sure how to answer that. 
SCOTT: Ok. Let me try and do it this way. If you testify favorably 
for the State, is it your understanding that they will recommend 
less time? 
MELTON: Yes. 
SCOTT: Then if you testify unfavorably to the state? 
MELTON: Yes. I suppose so. 
SCOTT: Ok. So you’re getting an incredible, incredible benefit 
from Mr. Chen and the State by coming in here and testifying.   Is 
that true? 
MELTON: Yes. 
SCOTT: Who decides ultimately whether your testimony satisfies 
the States requirements? 
MELTON: Um, I’m not 100% sure. To be honest. 
SCOTT: Well it’s Mr. Chen. Isn’t it? Right? 
MELTON: I guess so. 
SCOTT: So you have every reason to want to please him with your 
testimony here. Don’t you? 
MELTON: I never really thought of it that way. I didn’t know it 
was ultimately up to him. 
SCOTT: Ok. Ultimately up to the State? 
… 
SCOTT: I’ll try. What is your understanding? What do you expect 
the State’s recommendation regarding sentencing in your case to 
be if you please the State in your testimony here today? 
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MELTON: Um, the robbery charge will be dropped to a gross 
misdemeanor of rendering criminal assistance. 
SCOTT: And what kind of a sentence would you receive? 
MELTON: I believe there’s no more jail time and there’s just some 
fines. But I’m not exactly sure how much. 
SCOTT: How much time have you served in jail so far? 
MELTON: Twenty-something days. 
SCOTT: Thank you. Nothing further. 
RP 432-437 
 
Samalia argues that he was not allowed to inquire into the details 

of the plea and that the areas that he could not inquire into where “highly 

relevant” for assessing credibility and may be “essential” for effective 

cross examination, citing United States v. Mayans, 17 F.3d 1174 (9th Cir. 

1994).  Samalia does not address the problem that his attorney created and 

was addressed by the court, invited error.    The court crafted a method 

that allowed Samalia to cross examine Ms. Melton as to every aspect of 

her involvement in this case, except these two very limited areas and that 

was for Samalia’s own protection.  So that the jury would not have before 

it information that could have been highly prejudicial to his trial.    

State v. Downing, 151 Wn.2d 265, 272-3 (2004) “We will not 

disturb the trial court's decision unless the appellant or petitioner makes "a 

clear showing . . . [that the trial court's] discretion [is] manifestly 

unreasonable, or exercised on untenable grounds, or for untenable 

reasons." State ex rel. Carroll v .Junker, 79 Wn.2d 12, 26, 482 P.2d  775 

(1971) (citing MacKay v. MacKay, 55 Wn.2d 344, 347 P.2d 1062 (1959)). 
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Samalia has not met the test set forth in Garcia and Junker, he was

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